
1433rd meeting - 8 November 1973

1433rd meeting
Tlnursl~rtY, 8 November 1973~ at 3.30 p.m.

C.iairman: Mr. Sergio GONZALEZ GALVEZ (Mexico).

ed

p
ft
et,
lIe

r
ar
m
."I

:1t
ld
'a
r
i-

)

Is
"
e
e

:-
g
e
t
t
1
j

r, •

'I".

46. He supported the Spanish suggestion for the
insertion of two additional preambular paragraphs.
47. Mr. SAHOVIC (Yugoslavia), Chairman of the
Drafting Committee, reiterated that the text still had
to have the finishing touches added. The Drafting
Committee would take due account of the suggestions
made at the current meeting. It had discussed at length
the wording of the second preambular paragraph;
it had taken the initial text referred to it by the Sixth
Committr~e and made some changes in it; and it felt
that the text as at present worded reflected accurately
all the general trends which had emerged in the debate
in the Sixth Committee. He felt that it would be better
not to change the wording of the second preambular
paragraph at the present stage. He understood the
Thai representative's reasons for making his suggestion
but felt that the explanations given by the G'!atemalan
representative were very pertinent argu".ents in favour
of the text adopted by the Drafting Committee.
48. He agreed with the representative of Spain that
the Irish suggestion was fully consonant with that made
by Spain at the 1423rd meeting. Although the substance
of the Spanish suggestion had been incorporated in
article 2, paragraph 3, he could understand the Spanish

In the absence of the Chairman, Afr. Shitta-!3~y

(Nigeria) I Vice-Chairman, took the Chair.

AGENDA ITEl\f 90

Draft convention on the prevention and punishme~t of
crimes againgt diplomatic agents and other inter
nationally protected persons (continued) (A/871O/Rev.1,
chap.III; A/9127 an~ ?,,~d.J~ A/C.6/421, A/C.6/L.898,
AjC.6/I...902, A/C.6 u.903) AjC.6/L.905-910jRev.l,
A/':: ~/L.911, A./C:6/L.912/Rev.l t AIr:'J!jL:9Li, A/C.6j
L.917, A/C.6/JL.919/N.ev.l, A/C.6/L.92t-930, A/C/~!

L.932~940, A/C.6/L.94\3, A/C.6/L.944 and Add.l,
A/C.6/~.945-947)

Preamble (concluded)

1. Mr. YANEZ-BARNUEVO (Spain), introducing
document A/C.6/L.946, containing the two preambular
paragraphs which his delegation propos~d for addition
to the draft: articles in document A/8710/Rev.l, chap
ter III, recalled that at the previous meeting several
delegations, including those of Ireland, Greece, USSR
and Guatemala, had supported the idea of completing
the draft preamble approved by the Drafting Com
mittee (see A/C.6/L.944). Despite their similarity, the
two proposed paragraphs related to separate. com
plementary concepts. The first was designed to provide
legal justification for the draft convention, by basing
it on existing rules of international law such as those
contained in article 29 of the Vienna Convention on

193

representative's reasons for desiring the insertion of a
generai clause concerning the rules of international
law to be observed in cases covered by the convention.
The Spanish representative might perhaps submit a
formula to serve as a basis for more detailed discussion
in the Sixth Committee.

49. Mr. KASEMSRI (Thailand) said that having
heard the Chairman of the Drafting Committee explain
the wording of the second preambular paragraph, he
would not insist on his suggestions concerning that
paragraph.

50. Mr. CASTILLQ ARRIOLA (Guatemala) asked
the Chairman of the Drafting Committee to con:..:der
whether it might not be more suitable, in the Spanish
text, to replace the words Hal poneI''' by the words
"que ponen". In the Spanish text at least, that should
cover the point raised by the representative Of Thailand.

51. !\rIr. SIEV (Ireland), replying to a questior ~5ked

by the Chairman said that he would submit ~llS proposa'i
in writing2 the same afternoon.

The meeting rose at 1 p.m.

2 Subsequently circulated as document AjC.6/L.947.

AjC.6jSR.1433

Diplomatic Re1ations,1 which related to the protection
of dip!0matic agents. Although the draft con ..ention
did not cover all possible attacks on a diplomatic agent
but only serious attacks on his physical integrity and
freedom, the generaI obligation to prevent attacks
on his peqjU, fre~dom and dignity remained. With
regard to the second paragraph, the other rules of
international law that might be applicable would not
be affected in any way by the new convention. He had
intentionally not called international law "general"
or "customary", since his delegation did not favour
either qualification.
2. Mr. SIEV (Ireland), introducing document A/C.6/
L.947, Which contained the paragraph that his delega
tion would like to see added to the draft preamble
approved by the Drafting Committee, recalled that
he had already given his reasons at the previous meeting.
He thanked the delegations that had supported his
proposal and expressed the hope that the amendment
would be submitted to the Drafting Committee for its
consideration.
3. Mr. SARACHO (Argentina), referring to the
second paragraph of the draft preamble, suggested
that the words "because of the representation vested
in them" should be inserted between the words "persons"
and "create" in order to emphasize the fact that the
protection to which such persons were entitled was
due to the representation vested in them. In that

I United Nations, Treaty Series, vol. 500, No.731O, p.95.

....1IaIIL••V_;:tl"_lW_~I!III!!l """_"Mg_!MI"llll'8"----_·



......... .'....,..•••..•.... _ _ .. - 111••11_1_ ".

•

,Il

• •

General Assembly - Tweflty-elghth Session - Sixth Committee194

connexion it should be noted that the fourth preambular 13. The CHAIRMAN said that if there was no
paragraph of the Vienna Convention on Diplomatic objection to the substance of the preamble and the
Relations stated that the purpose of the privileges Committee adopted it, it might still have to be referred
and immunities of diplomatic agents was not to benefit to the Drafting Committee to be improved in form.
them but to ensure the efficient performance of the The Committee would then have an opportunity to
functions of diplomatic missions as representing States. glance at it one last time.
4. Mr. SCOTT (Jamaica) drew the attent'on of the 14. The Chairman then invited the Committc'e to
representative ofArgentina to article 2A, paragraph I (c), continue consideration of the amendments to the
which contained the samf~ idea. preamble proposed respectively by Spain (A/C.6jL.946)
5. Mr. SARACHO (Argentina) felt that in view of the and Ireland (A/C.6jL.947).
general nature of the idea it would be better to express 15. Mr. DALTON (United States of America) ex-
it in the preamble rather than in article 2A. 'pressed the hope that the Spanish and Irish delegations

would flot press their amendments. The first paragraph
6. Mr. BROMS (Finland) said that he doubted proposed by the Spanish delegation was not necessary
whether the addition proposed by the representative since it dupHcated article 2, paragraph 3, in the ter.t
of Argentina could alter the convention in any way proposed by the Drafting Committee (A/C.6jL.944i
from the legal viewpoint. Add.I). The second paragraph proposed by the Spanish
7. Mr. YANAI (Japan) felt that there was no point delegation and that proposed by the Irish delegation
in mentioning representqtion in the second preamhular were likewise unnecessary, since the convention being
paragraph since the term "internationally protected drafted was not concerned with codification. Besides,
person" was duly defined in article 1. Moreover, the the Irish amendment might lead to complications.
proposed addition would apprecia~ly limit the seope The Committee could simply mdicate in its report to
of the second preambular paragraph, whereas a broad the General Assembly that the ·new convention would
definition was given in ari'icle 1, paragraph I, particular- not afrect the other applicable rules of international law.
ly in subparagraph (h), which included any official 16. Mr. SCOTT (Jamaica) asked the representat~/e
or other agent of an international organization. of Spain how, within the context of the convention
8. ~1r. SARACHO (Argentina) agreed with the Chair- unde! conJideration, a State could guarantee the
man's suggestion that his proposal should be referred dignity of a diplomatic agent or other person entitled
to the Drafting Committee ~nd reserved his right to to international protection.
resubmit it to the Sixth Committee. 17. Mr. VEROSTA (Austria) said that his delegation
9. Mr. KOLESNIK (Union of Soviet Socialist Re- could not accept the second paragraph proposed by the
publics) felt that the paragraphs proposed by the Spanish dele3ation ~ it was too general in view of the
Spanish delegation did not fit into the preamble, since compromise text proposed by Bolivia (AjC.6jL.943)
it replaced a provision of article 2 in the Draiting Com- for the article relating to asylum and adopted by the
mittee's version (AiC.6jL.944/Add.l). The balance Sixth Committee at its previous meeting.
which the Drafting Committee had taken great pains 18. Mr. YANEZ-BARNUEVO (Spain), replying to
to introduce into article 2 should not be upset. At the representative of Jamaica, recalled that the first
the previous meeting the Irish and Spanish delega- paragraph proposed by his delegation was intended to
tions had seemed merely to want to refer in the preamble reaffirm the content of article 29 of the Vienna Con-
to the Vienna Convention on Diplomatic Relations vention on Diplomatic Relations. The provision crys-
and the Vienna Convention on Consular Relations; tallized a very old principle of international law which
the scope of the Spanish amendment was entirely was the basis for the convention under consideration.
different. Since the latter did not cover all aspects of protection
10. Nor could his delegation support the suggestion referred to in article 29 of the Vienna Convention,
of the representative of Argentina. As the representative care should be taken not to give the impression that
of Japan had pointed out, the addition of the words it was based on a restrictive interpretation of that article.
he prvposed would contradict article I and the result 19. Referring to the observation by tbe Soviet rep-
would be that officials and other agents of international resentative that the idea contained in the first para-
organizations would not be covered by the convention. graph proposed by the Spanish delegation was in
11. The Committee had already spent mu;,;h time article 2 of the Drafting Committee's text, he'recalled
considering the Commission's draft articles, and the that at the 1423rd meeting his delegation had expressed
Drafting Committee had reached compromise s:>lu- the hope that the idea would be reflected in the preamble.
tions which should be respected. Often, trying to The Drafting Committee had decided to place it in its
improve things only made them worse. Generaily article 2. His delegation felt it was essential to reserve
speaking, his delegation considered that the text of the the application of the other rules of international law,
preamble as proposed by the Drafting Committee either in the preamble or in a separate article in order
was satisfactory. that the reservation should apply to the whole of the
12. Mr. ROSENSTOCK (Untted States of A~~)crica) convention and not to a specific prevision.
thanked the representative of Argentina for not pressing 20. With regard to the sel'ond paragraph proposed
his proposal. However, if the Committee adopted the in document AjC.6jL.946, he would be prepared to
preamble now it would not have occasion to reconsider change the wording but urged that the idea contained
it later. therein should be reflected In the preamble.

1iIII!Jt.I..~~,'fIF",~~~~'t ....."''>t~ ...*'"''~.,.,;~~f'~~~~''':~~~~!/:I!l'~\t:~I~:~!'Ii''''!]~~~".,'t'''~..,..."7~.:.~~_ ••.JI!.I.!M.L~.~~f••JM1..~



•.....i•••1.1.1l.......,.II.IIIII••IIII.....l---I..±----'.U.II.·.•'..1••111I111I211I'1lI,!Ii["_UIIUIIUIl':••••••••••••••••--------.----

1433rd meeting - 8 November 1973 195

applied to any member of a collegial body performing
the functions of a head of State. It had therefore
adopted a slightly modified version of the amendments
submitted by the Soviet Union and Cyprus (AjC.6jL.905
and AjC.6jL.907). It had also considered that, in
accordance with the first of the Spanish amendments
(AjC.6/L.903), specific mention in that category of
persons should be made in paragraph 1 (a) of the minis
ter for foreign affairs, since he possessed a special status
under international law. The Drafting Committee had
also inserted the words "or other agent" in the first
part of paragraph 1 (b). That addition was needed
mainly for the purpose of the English text, since the
words "Jonctionnaire" and "personnalite ojJicielle" were
rendered in English by the single word "official",
as given in article V ofthe Convention on the Privileges
and Immunities of the United Nations.2 However,
under General Assembly resolution 76 (I), adopted
on 7 December 1946, the term "official"-"Jonction
naire" in French-referred only to "members of the
staff of the United Nations". It had been pointed out
to the Drafting Committee that a number of persons
had performed high functions for the United Nations
without being members· of the staff of the Organization.
The Drafting Committee had fdt it necessary to add
the term "agent" so that such persons could still be
covered by the future convention. It would also be
noted that the International Court of Justice had itself
used that expression in its advisory opinion on com
pensation for damage sustained in the service of the
United Nations3 delivered on 11 April 1949.
31. On the other hand, and still on the subject of
paragraph 1 (b), the Drafting Committee had adopted
the first of the United Kingdom amendments (AjC.6j
L.902), and the suggestion by the representative of
Iraq (1409th meeting), that the words "general inter
national law or an international agreement" should
be replaced by the words "international law".

32. In that connexion, the Drafting Committee pointed
out that the expression "international law" should
be interpreted in accordance with the meaning given
to it in Article 38 of the Statute of the International
Court of Justice and that, consequently, it covered
international agreements as well as general inter
national law. The Drafting Committee had also adopted
the third of the United Kingdom amendments designed
to include in the text of subparagraph (b) the words "to
special protection from any attack on his person,
freedom or dignity". The latter expression was based
on article 29 of the Vienna Convention on Diplomatic
Relations and on the provisions of other instruments
such as the Convention on Special Missions.4 It had
the advantage of defining the legal nature of the concept
of special protection.
33. In accordance with the second of the Spanish
amendments, the Drafting Committee had replaced
the words "as well as members of his family who are
likewise entitled to special protectiOn" at the end of
paragraph 1 (b) by the words "as wdl as members of his

2 General Assembly resolution 22A(I).
3 See Reparation for injuries suffered in the service of the United

Nations, Advisory Opinion: I.e.J. Reports 1949, p. 174.
4 General Assembly resolution 2530 (XXlV), annex.

21. The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the first para
graph proposed by Spa~n in document AjC.6jL.946.

The paragraph was rejected by 28 voies to 22, with
4;; abstentions.
22. The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the substance
of the second paragraph proposed by Spain in the
same document.
23. Mr. GODOY (Paraguay), speaking on a point of
order, said that it might first be appropriate to ascertain
whether Of not the Committee was prepared to make
article 2, paragraph 3, as formulated by the Drafting
Committee, into a new article.
24. The CHAIRMAN observed that the vote on the
second paragraph proposed by Spain had already begun.

That paragraph was rejected by 34 votes to 8, with
53 abstentions.
25. Mr. SIEV (Ireland) pressed for a vote on the
par'lgraph proposed by his delegation, since its scope
differed somewhat from that of the second paragraph
proposed by Spain.
26. The CHAlRMAN put to the vote the paragraph
proposed by Ireland (AjC.6jL.947}.

The paragraph lvas rejected by 32 votes to 16, with
53 abstentions.
27. Mr. KIBRET (Ethiopia) said that his delegation
had voted in favour of the amendment of Ireland.
It was obvious that: in preparing its draft, the Com
mission had ignored a number of matters because it
considered them to be regulated by customary inter
national law. That was true, for example, of the ques
tion of the status of refugees and their right under
the rules of customary international law and inter
national treaty law not to be returned to a country
from which they had fled out of fear or as a result of
threats. In his opinion, the amendment of Ireland
could have covered cases of that kind.
28. The CHAIRMAN said that if he heard no objec
tion he would assume that the Committee adopted the
text of the preamble suggested by the Drafting Com
mittee (see AjC.6jL.944) as a whole.

It was so decided.

Article 1
29. Mr. SAHOVIC (Yugoslavia), Chairman of the

Drafting Committee, recalled that the Sixth Com
mittee had referred to the Drafting Committee the
text of article 1 of the Commission's draft, together
with all the amendments thereto. Those amendments
included the French amendment to paragraph 1 (b)
(AjC.6jL.91I), which proposed that the concept of
special protection on which the Commission's draft
was founded should be replaced by that of the immunity
of an internationally protected persc ~i from jurisdiction
for acts carried out in the performance of his functions.
The Drafting Committee had felt that to be a question
of substance which lay beyond its competence and had
therefore taken no decision on the amendment, while
the French delegation had reserved its position on that
point.
30. The Drafting Committee had felt that, in order
to avoid any ambiguity, it should be made clear that
the expression "Head of State" in paragraph 1 (a)

,It

, .

.,.

n
e
e
)
e

)

t
)

Ig
S,
s.
o
d
~.

'e
n
e
d

,n

to
Ie
6)

10

~e

~d

n.
to

.....~I.llo.I.I.•II~J•••••_ ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• -



11111""'11I"11112 3Hit.' 1 1 HI WI' ...

,T

•

'-

() See International Civil Aviation Organization. documents 8920
and 8966, respectively.

seen fit to request that privilege. If one of the elements
of inviolability of the person, such as immunity from
arrest, was taken as the criterion, it would be equally
lacking in objectivity; Hnd. indeed, not all agreements
provided for that immunity and its extent was variable.
39. The only criterion which was reliable and recogM

nized in all cases that the convention was to cover was
that of immunity from prosecution fOf acts performed
in the exercise of official duties. That criterion implied
that the individual in question was acting in the name
and on behalf of a State or international organization
entitled to special status for its agents.
40. Mr. SIEV (Ireland) proposed to replace the
expression "international organization" in paragraph
I (h) by "intergovernmental organization"; paragraph 3
could then be deleted.
41. Mr. KASEMSRI (Thailand) suggested that the
words "or his means of transport" should be added
after the words "his premises" in paragraph J (h)
&1nd that a comma should be inserted after the word
"him" and the word "or" deleted. It would also be
advisable, in order to clarify the text of paragraph 2~

to add the adjective "reasonable" before the word
..grounds" .
42. Mr ABADA (Algeria) observed that the text of
article I as contained in document A/C.6JL.944 showed
signs of the compromises of which it was a result. His
deh:gation found the wording of paragraph ], sub
paragraphs (a) and (h), acceptable. However, it had
hoped that the Drafting Committee would base its
version of p~sagraph 2 on the text submitted by Argen
tina (AjC.6iL.909). In the French version, at least,
the definition of an offender given in that paragraph
was too vague. The expression "grounds to believe"
employed two words unknown in legal language and
open to highly subjective interpretation. There was a
risk that '''grounds to believe" that a person had com
mitted a crime would be found in his ethnic or racial
origin, his nationality or the colour of his skin, or in
the opinions he had expressed or demonstrated. His
delegation was firmly opposed to the wording used
in document A/C.6/L.944. It was therefore necessary
to find a compromise formula, for which the text
proposed by Argentina could serve as a basis. If a
compromise proved impossible, his delegation would
propose the deletion pure and simple of that paragraph,
since there was no obligation to give such a definition
of an ....alleged offender", a concept which, moreover,
was not defined in the Conventions of The Hague or
MontreaI,6 to which many delegations had seen fit
to refer.

43. Mr. ABDALLAH (Tunisia) recalled that Tunisia
had expressed serious reservations about paragraph 2,
which had been sent back to the Drafting Committee
together with an amendment by the Argentine delega
tion (AjC.6/L.909) containing more suitable wording
than that proposed by the Commission. Although
not all members of the Drafting Committee had ap
proved the Argentine definition, they did all agree
that the definition of an alleged offender depended on

Gtneral Assembly - Twenty-eighth Session - Sixth Committee196

~ ell.ltd Nalitm"" /r£'lI/j, Sene.~. vol. 596, ~(). 8638, p. 261.

family forming part of his household". The latter
formlll:} was to be found in the Vienna Convention
on DiplOlllatic Relations, and in the Vienna Convention
on Consular Relations,S the French text of which was
admittedly worded slightly differently ("l1ll'mhre de
jsaj famil/e vil-'alll a SOil foyer "). During the discussion
on paragraph I (h) the question had arisen of the pro
tection, under the convention, of stateless persons Of
persons. perfonning functions on behalf of a State other
than that of which they were nationals One delegation
had expressed reservations on that matt;;r, and the
Drafting Committee had felt that it should be referred .
back to the Sixth Committee.
34. With regard to the definition of the expression
"alleged offender". which was dealt with in pamgraph 2,
the Drafting Committee had been of the opinion that a
formula was required that was sufficiently flexible to
be applicable under the various systems of national
law. For that reason it had preferred the version
drawn up by the International Law Commission and
had discarded the Argentine amer.Jdment (A/C.6/L.909),
which was based on legal concepts peculiar to particular
systems of national Jaw. One delegation had made
reservations on that point.
35. With regard to the style and presentation, the
Drafting Committee, following established practice,
had replaced the expression "of the present articles"
at the beginning of the article by the words "of the
present Convention" and had removed the capital
Jetter at the start of each paragraph in the Commission's
draft, since the new version of article 1 constituted
only a single sentence.
36. After having considered the pertinent amend
ments the Drafting Committee had adopted the text
of article I as shown in document AIC.6/L.944.
37. ~1r. BESSOU (France), introducing his delega
tion's amendments (AiC.6/L.945) to document AjC.6/
L.944, said that, as regards paragraph I (b), the notion
of personal inviolability embodied in that provision
was not satisfactory to his delegation. That concept
was expressly referred to only in articles 37 and 39 of
the Vienna Convention on Diplomatic Relations, where
it covered the members of the family of a diplomatic
agent forming part of his househOld and administrative
staff. By analogy, that principle was applicable to
officials of international organizations which had been
able to obtain diplomati~ treatment for some of their
agents. It was doubtful whether it could also be applied
to officials on "special missions", whose status in that
regard was not clearly regulated by intenmtional law,
since the Convention on Special Missions had not
entered into force. It should also be pointed out that
the person of a consul was not inviolable.

3tt The proposed criterion was, therefore, arbitrary,
<,ince it depended on the goodwill of the States granting
the privilege in question. That criterion might prove
to be too broad in some States and too restrictive in
other~, particularly if its effect was that the convention
would not apply to persons who should normally have
been protected by reason of their functions, but for
whom the State ()r organization in question had not



197

power conferred on the receiving State left the safety
of such a person in some doubt. .
49. The second category was that of a non-national of
a sending State accredited to an international organiza
tion. Generally speaking, it seemed that the term
"internationally protected person" was applicable to a
representative of a State to an international organiza
tion. If that was indeed so, his delegation believed
that a national of a third State appointed by a sending
State as a diplomatic agent to an international organiza
tion, and accepted as such by that organization, should
be considered as an "internationally protected person"
and, accordingly, enjoy the protection to be provided
under the future convention.
50. It was, however, possible that the host State of an
international organization might refuse, intentionally
or otherwise, to grant diplomatic status to such a
person. His delegation believed that the host State
did not have the discretion to agree or refuse to grant
diplomatic status to such a representative and that that
situation was not covered by article 8, paragraph 3,
of the Vienna Convention on Diplomatic Relations.
However, the question arose of how the future con
vention could be apphed to a person in that category
who was the victim of a crime if the host State did not
grant him diplomatic status. It was in order to avoid
the difficulties to which such a situation could give
rise that his delegation had submitted its amendment,
which had made it clear that a representative of a
sending State who was a national of a third State other
than the host State of the international organization
in question should be covered by the provisions of
the draft convention.

51. Some members of the Sixth Committee had
suggested to the delegation of the United Arab Emirates
that its aim in submitting its amendment could be
equally well attained by the inclusion in the summary
record of the meeting at which that question was to be
discussed of a statement that such was the Committee's
interpretation, which would also be reaffirmed in its
report on that particular item.
52. In a spirit of compromise, his delegation had
accepted that suggestion, on the understanding that
the Sixth Committee would have considered that the
term ··internationally protected person" appearing in
article I, paragraph 1, concerned a national of a third
State appointed by a sending State to an international
organization if such a representative or official was
accepted by the international organization to which
he was appointed, provided that he was not a national
of the host State where such an international organiza
tion was located. Such a person would therefore be
covered by the provisions of the proposed convention.
53. If the Sixth Committee did not accept that solution,
his delegation would submit a formal amendment and
request that it should be put to the vote.
54. The CHAIRMAN said that, in the absence of any
objection, he would take it that the suggestion of the
delegation of the United Arab Emirates was accepted.

It was so decided.

55. Mr. SARACHO (Argentina) said that many
objections raised with regard to paragraph 2 had not

1433rd meeting - 8 November 1973

•

'-

'20

the internal law of each country. It was for that reason
that the Drafting Committee had decided to retain
the Commission's wording, which was vague, imprecise
and open to numerous interpretations.

44. He hoped the Committee would not retain the
definition contained in article I, paragraph 2, in docu
ment AjC.6jL.944 as it was neither acceptable in law
nor sufficiently strict. He firmly supported the position
of the Algerian delegation.

45. Mr. HAMMAD (United Arab Emirates) said
that it was his delegation which had expressed a reserva
tion in the Drafting Committee concerning article 1
of the draft convention. There did seem to be a need
for the future convention to take into account the
situation of persons acting on behalf of a State other
than that of which they were nationals. 1 hat was why
his delegation had submitted an oral amendment to
article j, paragraph 1 (b), to the Drafting Committee.
In order not to delay the work of the Committee, the
amendment had not been a formal one and he had not
insisted that the Committee take a decision on it but
had reserved his right to raise the question in the Sixth
Committee. Many members of the Drafting Com
mittee had expressed their support for the amendment
and encouraged his delegation to submit it to the Sixth
Committee.

46. The purpose of the proposed amendment had
been to :nsert after the word "State" in subparagraph (b)
the words: "Whether he is a national or not of the
sending State, provided that he is not a national of
either the receiving or the host State".

47. In suggesting that the term ··internationally pro
tected person" should include a person acting on behalf
of a State of which he was not a national, his delegation
was not introducing an anomalous concept, for the
suggestion reflected a real situation which was frequently
encountered in international relations. There was an
undeniable trend among States to employ nationals
of third States to represent them. There were many
reasons for that, including the lack of trained and
highly specialized personnel, the need of the sending
State to take advantage of the expertise of certain
individuals who were nationals of third States, the
lack of financial resources in some developing countries
and the existence of special relationships, whether
political or economic, between two or more States
which resulted in their agreeing to have their interests
represented by one person.

48. Two categories of persons would be involved
in the application of the term "internationally protected
person" to a national of a third State. Firstly, there
was the non-national of a sending State accredited
to a receiving State. The status of such a person was
governed by article 8 of the Vienna Convention on
Diplomatic Relations, paragraph 3 of which stated
that the receiving State might reserve for itself the right
to give its consent, revocable at its discretion, to such
an appointment. There did not seem to be any problem
about the application of article 1, paragraph I, of the
convention now being drafted to that category of
person. However, in view of the growing trend towards
such appointments, his delegation felt the discretionary

_._·,.·.··_.-.~~L IIi TillA1S& •.-

~a

ng
gh
p
ee
m

Sla.,
-,
~ee

'er,
or
fit

;t of
,wed
His

sub
had
: its
~en

:ast,
aph
:ve"
and
IS a
>m
cial
~m

His
sed
ary
ext
f a
uid
ph.
lon

t the
dded

(h)
~ord

[) be
Ih 2,
!lord

: the
:raph
lph 3

ments
from
~ually

ments
iable.
'ecog
r was
Irmed
Iplied
name
ation



198

been taken into consideration and he was unable to
endorse the Drafting Committee's decision to keep to
the Commission's draft, which was reproduced almolit
unchanged in document A/C.6/L.944.
56. The word "grounds" was much too vague and
might even prove dangerous. In its amendment (A/C.6!
L.909) his delegation used the words "sufficient evi..
dence" which seemed much more satisfactory. The
legislat~onof many countries could hardly accommodate
the wording of paragraph 2 as it appeared in docu
ment A/C.6jL.944, because of its vagueness.

57. If the Committee decided to vote on article I,
his delegation would request a separate vote on para
graph 2, unless the wording was changed. Jf on the
other hand. the Committee decided to send the text
of paragraph 2 back to the Drafting Committee and
it proved to be impossible to agree on a different wording,
his delegation would prefer the omission of any defini
tion of the "alleged offender".

58. Mr. SCOTT (Jamaica) drew attention to the use
of capitals in paragraph 1 (a) of the text of document
A.'C.6iL.944 for the expression "Minister for Foreign
Affairs", which therefore seemed to refer to a person
with a very precise title. His delegation would prefer
the expression "'Minister responsible for foreign affairs".
without seeming to refer to a specific official title.

59. Mr. SAM (Ghana) reserved his delegation's pos
ition on paragraph 2. He wished to revert to the
question of terminology when the Committee discussed
the title to be given to the convention.

60. Sir Vincent EVANS (United Kingdom) said
that a majority of members of the Drafting Com
mittee had been unable to accept the French amendment
to paragraph 1 (b) (see A/C.6jL.945), as it would extend
the field of application of the convention to several
categories of persons to which it was not intended to
apply. For example~ the convention would then apply
to members of visiting foreign armed forces, to technical
assistance personnel and to all the staff of international
organizations. It could therefore be estimated that at
Brussels alone, about 30,000 persons would be covered
by the convention. Moreover, as the French amend
ment did not refer to international law, the convention
could also apply to other persons benefiting from
immunity under their national law.

61. The expression "Minister for Foreign Affairs",
which the representative of Jamaica had suggested
should be modified, was already used in codification
instruments such as in article 21, paragraph 2, of
the Convention on Special Missions, and its interpreta
tion should not give rise to any difficulty, whatever
the title ofthe person exercising the functions in question.

62. Referring to the Thai suggestion that the means
of transport should be mentioned in paragraph I (h),
he explained that the Drafting Committee had com
pleted itft work on article 1 before it had dealt with
article 2, which wa~ the article where the proposal to
add ··mear:~ of tran~porCt had originally been nUlde.
03 With resard to paragraph 2, most of the members
{1i the Dndttni CommlUee had agreed with the Com..
mtnHm that a dchmLion vI" the cxprcs~i{)Jl "alleged

offender" should appear in the convention. Itwas
important to exclude cases where there were mere
allegations again~t a person. The expression "alleged
offender" was used in various parts of the convention
in different contexts, depending on how far the invcstJga
tion following the crime had advanced and it was thus
not possible to give a precise definition which would
exactly tit all those contexts. Moreover, the Drafting
Committee had considered the definition proposed
by the Commission to he the one most appropriate to
affect benetlcially the diversity of national penal systems.

64. Mr. BAILEY (Australia) endorsed the United
Kingdom representative's comments on the French
amendment. On the other hand, hir-; delegation sup
ported the Irish representative\ suggestion that in
paragraph I (1)) "international organization" should
be replaced by "intergovernmental organization" and
endorsed the comments of the representative of the
United Arab Emirates concerning persons working
for a State of which they were not nationals. His delega
tion also supported the suggestion by the representative
ofThailand that means of transport should be mentioned
in the same subparagraph.

65. Mr. OKOGWU (Nigeria) also supported the Thai
suggestion. His delegation did not consider it necessary
to add the adjective "reasonable" before the word
"grounds". It thought that the French amendment
would give rise to additional difficulties.
66. Mr. DALTON (United States of America) was
grateful to the representative of the United Arah
Emirates for having drawn attention to the situation of
officials working for a State of which they were not
nationals. On the other hand, the other amendments
under consideration did not appear to make appreciable
improvements in the Drafting Committee's text.
67. Mr. YANAI (Japan) agreed with the United
Kingdom delegation concerning the French amendment.
The reference in the text to international law and the
idea of special protection based on article 29 of the
Vienna Convention on Diplomatic Relations should
be maintained. The idea of immunity above all con
cerned the relations between a person entitled to inter
national protection and the host State. as could be
seen in article 31 of the Vienna Convention. and had
nothing to do with the essential objective of the pro
posed convention.
68. His delegatio,n thought that the Drafting Com
mittee should give consideration to the Irish suggestion
that the term "'international organization" should
be replaced by "intergovernmental organization·~.

69. His delegation considered the Thai suggestion
that means of transport should be mentioned in para
gra{Jh I (b) to be very pertinent.
70. Mr. KRISPIS (Greece) said that he understood
the expression "Minister for Foreign Affairs" in para
graph 1 «(I) to mean any person exercising such tunc
tkms, e.g. a Vice-Minister for Foreign At1bir. an Under
Secretary of State for Foreign Amlirs. etc,
71. His dclegatklJl SUpPl.ll"ted the Irish suggestion
that the term "intergovernmental orgullilutil)U" in
paragraph 1 (h) shl.luld be substituted tOl' "international
ol'galU/atiou" and that l.lf Thailand tlmt means t,lf



1433rd meeting - 8 NO\'ClIlber 1973 199
--_~_------------~_._-------_.__._----------------

It was
mere

111eged
'cntion
est.ga
lS thus
would
rafting
>posed
iate to
rstcms.

United
;"rench
rl Sup
hat in
~hould

I" and
of the
orking
Iclcga
rltativc
tinned

e Thai
:essary

word
dment

1) was
Arab

tion of
re not
Iments
:ciable
text.
Jnited
iment.
nd the
of the
;hould
1 con-
inter

lId be
ld had
e pro-

Com
~estion

;hould
)n·~.

~estion

para-

rstood
, para
. tUllc
Jnder-

~stll~n

n" in
ltiQuul
ms llf

transport should be mentioned in the same subpara
graph.
72. The Greek delegation endorsed the views of the
United Kingdom delegation concerning the French
amendment.
73. Mr. YANEZ-BARNLJEVO (Spain) considered
that the expression "Ministcl' for FOl'cign Amlirs"
would givc rise to no dWicullies or interpretation
because it was a gcneral term intended to apply to a
person with well-defincd fUllctio.n!). The expressions
"lIead of State" and "Head of Govel'llment", which
had given risc to no difIicullies. referred to persons
whose oHlcial title also varied in diflerent countries.
74. With regard to the French amendmcnt. his delega
tion associated itself with the arguments put forward
by the representative of the United Kingdom.
75. Turning to the suggestion of Thailand to the
cHect that means of transport should be mentioned in
paragraph I (h). he said that. while his delegation
agreed with the substance of the proposal. it would
prcfcr. for considerations of form, that that subpara
graph refer to thc crimes mcntioned in article, 2, which
covcred means of transport (see A1C.6/L.944/Add. I).
76. Referring t.o the Spanish text of paragraph I (M,
his delegation pointed Oul for the information of the
Drafting Committec that the words "cou!,ol'me al deY£'dw
internllciol1a'" could be placed after die words "/t'llga
cll'redlO It in order-to bring the Spanish version into
linc with the English and French vcrsions.
77. In paragraph 2. in connexion with the question
of whether thc adjective "reasonable" should be addcd
before the word "grounds", as proposed by the rep
resentative of Thailand, he pointed out that that nuance
could not he expressed preciscly in the French and
Spanish versions. That paragraph. which had 110 equi
valent either in the Convention of Thc Hague or in
the Convcntion of Montreal, might also be dcleted as
had been suggcsted by thc reprcsentativc of Algeria.
78. He said th~lt his delegation would have no diffi
culty in accepting thc suggestion of Ireland to the
effect that thc words "international organization"
should be rcplaced by "intergovernmental organiza
tion" .
79. Mr. MAi'GA (Mali) said that paragraph 2 was
too imprecise and, because of its subjectivc nature,
it could lead to abuse of authority. It would bc pre
fcrable to adopt the Argentine formula (A/C.6/L.909).
or else to delcte the patagraph.
80. He associated himsclf with the rcmarks made by
the representative of the United Arub Emiratcs con~·

cerning persons in thc scrvice of a State of which they
were not nationals.

81. Mr. OULARE (Guinea) said that hc fully
supported the suggestion of the representative of
Algeria for the dcletion of paragraph 2, which his
delegation thought vague and dangerous.
82. Mr. ALVAREZ TABIO (Cuba) said that he
found the wording of paragraph 2, which was imprecise
and subjective in nature, particularly unfortunate.
In such matters, facts should be the primary considera
tions. Extradition treaties signed by Cuba required
a precise enumeration of the facts of the case as evidence

supporting any request for extradition. The formula
proposed by Argentina, which refcrred to "sufficient
evidencc", also did not appear to removc all possibility
of practical difficulties. On the other hand. dcleting
the paragraph would only complicate the problem.
His delegation wishcd to suggest that the words "there
arc grounds to believc" should be replaced by the
words "there is evidence for reasonable belief'.

83. Mr. POLANCO (Colombia) recalled that presump
tion of guilt was a restrictivc concept in criminal Jaw
which implied specific Jinks of causality. In that
connexion, the Argentine amendment (A/C.6/L.909)
was unqucstionably an improvement ovcr paragraph 2
as prepared by the Drafting Committee. If the Argentine
amendment was not adopted, the text should be referred
baek to the Drafting Committee.

84. Mr. ROSENNE (Israel) supported the French
amendment and endorsed the comments made by the
representative of the Unitcd Arab Emirates concerning
persons in the service of a State of which they werc
not nationals. He also agreed with the suggestion of
Ireland to the effect that the phrase "international
organization" should be rcplaced by "intergovern
mental organization".

¥ ,

85. Mr. SAHOVIC (Yugoslavia), Chairman of the
Drafting Committee. stressed that the Drafting Com
mittee had already studicd with the greatest care the
problems which had been raised in connexion with
article I. and that it had done its best to draw up a
text in the light of all the amendments and comments
which had becn submitted. The Drafting Committee
woulo hardly be in a better position to rcconsider the
text if thc tcxt was referred back to it without specific
guidelines designed to help achieve a compromise
solution.

86. Mr. CHEIKH (Tunisia) said that, while he
understood the arguments of the United Kingdom
rcpresentative in support ofparagraph 2, he still believed
that the wording did not solvc the problem, and stressed
that his Governmcnt would have difficulty in ratifying
the convention if that paragraph was retained.

87. The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the various
amendments and suggestL:ms relating to article I as
drafted by the Drafting Committee.

The French cmelldment (see AjC.6jL.945) was rejec
ted by 73 votes to 5. with 10 abstentions.

The oral amendment of Ireland (see para. 40 abol'E;
was adopted by 77 voles to 7, with 11 abstelltions.
88. The CHAIRMAN said that, if there was no
objection, he would take it that the Committee agreed
to adopt the suggestion of the representative ofThailand
to the effect that, in paragraph 1 (b), the words "or
his means of transport" should be added after the
words "his premiscs". and the word "or" replaced
by a comma.

It was so decided.
The oral amendment oj Algeria and Tunisia (see

paras. 42 alld 44 above) was rejected by 52 votes to 28,
ll'ith 18 abstentions.

The Argentine amendment (A/C.6{L.909) was adopted
by 44 votes to 36, with 17 abstentions.



" .

set at 1 p.m. on Friday, 9 November.
90. Mr. WEHRY (Netherlands), supported by Mr.
SIEV (Ireland), suggested that the deadline should
be set at 1 p.m. on Monday, 12 November.

It was so decided.
The meeting rose at 6.45 p.m.

AjC.6jSR.1434

by way of compromise that the new paragraph 3 con
tained in document AjC.6jL.944jAdd.l should be
added to article 2. The last part of that text was based
on article 29 of the Vienna Convention on Diplomatic
Relations. l The adoption of the new paragraph 3 had
made redundant the Spanish amendment (AjC.6jL.946)
to insert two new paragraphs at the end of the preamble.
3. In paragraph 1 (b), the Drafting Committee had
added to the Commission's text a reference to means of
transport, as proposed by Argentina (AjC.6jL.919j
Rev.l) and by Belgium, Spain and Thailand (AjC.6j
L.937). It had made no change to subparagraphs (c), (d)
and (e) or to the final part of paragraph 1. The words
"whether the commission of the crime occurs within
or outside of its territory" in the Commission's text
had already been deleted by the Sixth Committee
(l424th meeting) when it adopted the amendments
proposed by Japan, the Netherlands and the Philippines
(A'C.6jL.912jRev.I).
4. Some reservations had been expressed concerning
paragraph 1 as a whole, and several members of the
Drafting Committee had supported the Sudanese sug
gestion to add at the end of the introductory part of
paragraph I the words "unless the offence is com
mitted for reasons which are" not related to the status
of the internationally protected person". The Com
mittee had reworded paragraph 2 so as to take account
of the Argentine amendment involving that paragraph
(see A/C.6/L.919jRev.l). He recalled that the Sixth
Committee, when adopting article 2A, had deleted
paragraph 3 of the Commission's text. Finally, two
delegations had expressed reservations concerning the
drafting of article 2 as a whole.

5. Mr. GODOY (Paraguay) said that in principle
his delegation supported the third of the Spanish
amendments (see A/C.6jL.913) that article 2, para
graph 3, with some drafting changes, should constitute
a separate article. Since the Spanish representati"e
had not insisted on that amendment, Paraguay would
not request separate consideration of that question.

6. The Drafting Committee might make some im
provements in the wording of the article. He suggested
informally that in paragraph 3 the words "those and"
might be inserted before the word "other" and that
the word "person" before "freedom or dignity" might

1 United Nations, Treaty Series, vol. 500, No.73lO, p.95.

General Assembly - Twenty-eighth Session - Sixth Committee200

AGENDA ITEM 90

1434th meeting
Friday, 9 November 1973, at 11 2.m.

Chairman: Mr. Sergio GONZALEZ GALVEZ (Mexico).

Article 1 of the draft of the Drafting Committee
(see A/C.6/L.944) was adopted as amended by 88 votes
to none, with 11 abstentions.

89. The CHAIRMAN said he felt that the deadline
for the submission of amendments to articles 2-12,
as adopted by the Drafting Committee, should be

Draft convention on tbe prevention and punishment of
crimes against diplomatic agents and other inter
nationally protected persons (continued) (A/8710/
Rev.l, chap.HI; A/9127 and Add.l, A/C.6/421, A/C.6/
L.898, A/C.6fL.902, A/C.6/L.903, A/C.6/L.905-910/
Rev.l, AiC.6fL.911, A/C.6/L.912/Rev.l, A/C.6/L.913,
AjC.6j L.917, A/C.6/L.919/Rev.l, AjC.6jL.928-930,
AjC.6jL.932-940, A/C.6jI."'43, A/C.6jL.944 and
Add.l; AjC.6/L.945-948)

Article 2
1. Mr. SAHOVIC (Yugoslavia), Chairman of the

Drafting Committee, introducing document AjC.6j
L.944jAdd.l , which contained the text of article 2
adopted by the Drafting Committee, said that that
Committee had considered all the amendments to the
text of article 2 of the draft articles in document A/8710/
Rev.l, chapter III, referred to it by the Sixth Committee
and the oral suggestions made in the course of the
debate. The results were embodied in the document.
The first part of paragraph 1 reproduced without any
change the corresponding provision of article 2 of
the International Law Commission. Several members
of the Drafting Committee had expressed reservations
concerning the words "regardless of motive", but the
deletion of those words had not been endorsed and
the question was referred back to the Sixth Committee.
2. With regard to paragraph 1 (a), the Drafting Com
mittee had felt that it would be preferable to delete the
word "violent", which might be interpreted as excluding
from the scope of article 2 offences such as poisoning,
which could be committed without any act of violence.
It had also seemed advisable to refer expressly in that
subparagraph to the more serious crimes, namely,
murder and kidnapping. The Drafting Committee had
reworded the text accordingly, taking as a basis the
amendments of Argentina (AjC.6/L.919jRev.l) and
of Belgium, Spain and Thailand (AjC.6/L.937). In
view of the first of the amendments of the Soviet Union
(A/C.6jL.906), some members of the Drafting Com
mittee had felt that paragraph 1 (a) should also make
reference to attacks upon the dignity of internationally
protected persons and had therefore proposed the
insertion of the words "or dignity" after the word
"liberty". That proposal had met with opposition
from other members, and it had therefore been agreed


